Vivian Wentzel, CPA WENTZEL and COM PANY, PC

Certified Public Accountant

July 21, 2017

To the Audit Committee
Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. for the year ended
December 31, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated July 21, 2017. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information in our letter to you dated February 7, 2017. Professional standards also
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. are described in Note 2 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’'s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as
a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated July 21, 2017.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee and management of Open Air
Campaigner, U.S., Inc. and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,

lentzel and Compary, P
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WENTZEL and COMPANY, PC
Certified Public Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc.
(anonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December
31, 2016, and the related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Open Air Campaigners U.S., Inc. as of December 31, 2016,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Open Air Campaigners U.S., Inc.’s 2015 financial statements,
and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated August 15, 2016. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

rege ana g omppry. #7°

Fleetwood, Pennsylvania
July 21, 2017



OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016
WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

ASSETS:
2016 2015
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 310,970 $ 256,908
Investments 33,468 33,542
Accounts Receivable 52 7,699
Inventory 21,145 26,058
Other Asset 125,000 125,000
Property and Equipment, Net 55,719 90,356
TOTAL ASSETS $ 546,354 $ 539,563
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 0 $ 3,837
Actuarial Liability for Annuity Payable 18,748 19,574
TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,748 23,411
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted:
General Fund 346,887 300,796
Net Investment in Property and Equipment 55,719 90,356
Temporarily Restricted 125,000 125,000
TOTAL NET ASSETS 527,606 516,152
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 546,354 $ 539,563

See notes to financial statements.
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OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Contributions

Income, Supplies

Interest

Gift in Kind Income

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES:
Program
Administration and General

Fundraising

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER CHANGES:
Extraordinary Contribution
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

TEMPORARILY 2016 2015

UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTALS TOTALS
1,407,215 $ 1,407,215 $ 1,401,753

6,806 6,806 7,245

1,134 1,134 1,868

0 0 896
1,296 0 1,296 (1,919)

1,416,451 0 1,416,451 1,409,843
1,180,359 1,180,359 1,197,011
161,337 161,337 161,752

63,301 0 63,301 66,538
1,404,997 0 1,404,997 1,425,301
11,454 0 11,454 (15,458)

0 0 0 125,000

11,454 0 11,454 109,542

391,152 125,000 516,152 406,610

402,606 $ 125,000 527,606 $ 516,152

See notes to financial statements.
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OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2016 2015

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Net Assets $ 11,454 $ 109,542
Adjustments to reconcile the change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 34,637 34,637

(Gains) Losses on Investment Transactions (1,296) 1,919

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 7,647 7,449

(Increase) Decrease in Inventory 4,913 (5,023)

(Increase) Decrease in Other Asset 0 (125,000)

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (3,837) (401)

Increase (Decrease) in Annuity Payable (826) (766)
TOTAL CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 52,692 22,357
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

(Purchases)/Sales of Investments 1,370 1,010

(Acquisition)/Disposal of property and equipment 0 (47,332)
TOTAL CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,370 (46,322)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FOR THE YEAR 54,062 (23,965)
CASH, BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 256,908 280,873
CASH, END OF THE YEAR $ 310,970 $ 256,908
Supplemental Disclosure:

Cash Paid for Interest Expense $ 0 $ 0

Gift of Other Asset $ 0 $ 125,000

See notes to financial statements.
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ACCOUNT:

Salaries

Payroll Taxes
Affiliation Expenses
Annuity
Depreciation
Evangelism Supplies
Insurance
Investment Fees
Meetings

Office Supplies
Postage
Professional Services
Promotion

Rent

Staff Conferences
Telephone

Travel

TOTAL EXPENSES - 2016

TOTAL EXPENSES - 2015

OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Administration 2016 2015
and TOTAL TOTAL
Program General Fundraising EXPENSES EXPENSES
$ 869,586 $ 102,304 $ 51,152 $ 1,023,042 $ 1,046,779
52,833 6,216 3,108 62,157 63,523
1,917 1,917 1,643 5,477 5,875
924 924 1,566
25,978 6,927 1,732 34,637 34,637
157,472 157,472 146,766
4,796 4,316 479 9,591 9,728
348 41 21 410 451
1,979 2,968 4,947 6,056
26,705 9,538 1,907 38,150 46,307
2,664 3,334 668 6,666 5,084
7,878 7,878 7,884
1,109 555 555 2,219 8,541
13,217 2,478 826 16,521 17,700
6,318 9,478 15,796 5,203
2,554 2,043 510 5,107 4,392
12,883 420 700 14,003 14,809
$ 1,180,359 $ 161,337 $ 63,301 $ 1,404,997
$ 1,197,011 $ 161,752 $ 66,538 $ 1,425,301

See notes to financial statements.
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OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

1. Organization and Nature of Activities

Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. (OAC) is a nonprofit corporation dedicated to
evangelism by proclaiming the Gospel in the United States of America and abroad. OAC
also assists and equips local churches in effective open-air outreaches, working through
field offices located throughout the United States and abroad.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies of Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. are as follows:

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and
other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) No. 958. Under ASC No. 958, the Organization
is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and
permanently restricted net assets. The Organization did not have any assets or transactions
that were restricted by donors during the calendar year 2016.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held in checking and money market accounts and
certificates of deposit with maturities of less than 90 days.



OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (continued)

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Donated Materials and Services

Materials and other assets received as donations are recorded and reflected in the
accompanying financial statements at their fair values at the date of receipt, when reliable
estimates of the fair value of such items are available. Contributed services are reported as
contributions at their fair value if such services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or
would have been purchased if not provided by donation, require special skills, and are
provided by individuals possessing such specialized skills. OAC relies on the services of
volunteers; however, the value of these services has not been reflected in the statement of
activities since it does not meet the aforementioned recognition requirements.

Expense Allocation

Expenses are charged to programs and supporting services on the basis of periodic time and
expense studies. Management and general expenses include those expenses that are not
directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support and
direction of the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements

The Organization adopted the provisions of ASC No. 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures (“ASC 8207). ASC 820 does not require additional fair value measurements,
but defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements.



OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (continued)

Income Tax Status

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the
Organization’s tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In
addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b) (1) (A) and has been classified as a public charity under Section 509(a) (1).

ASC No. 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”) clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements, and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

There were no uncertain income tax positions identified that would have a material effect
on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016. With few exceptions,
Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. is no longer subject to federal or state income tax
examinations by tax authorities for years before 2013 and there are no known examinations
in progress as of the audit report date.

Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenues or gains in the period received
and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits
received. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they
depend are substantially met.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at
the date of donation. The organization’s capitalization policy is to capitalize property and
equipment when the cost exceeds $500. Depreciation is computed using primarily the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.



OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (continued)

Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue and Support

As is generally the case with deputized support fund raising systems, missionaries raise
funds for their own support and for a significant portion of the ministry expenses which
they incur. These funds are designated, but not restricted, by donors for the ministry of
individuals or for use on particular projects. Funds received by donors for use in particular
fields of ministry are used in those fields, but, in accordance with provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code, the board reserves the right to redirect funds to specific projects or
programs within that field of ministry. Funds designated by donors for use in particular
fields are generally spent in the year received. Contributions are recorded when cash is
received or when ownership of donated assets is transferred. Bequests are recorded at the
time the organization has an established right to the bequest and the proceeds are
measurable.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31, 2016 cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Checking Accounts:

PNC Bank (Nazareth) $ 2,732
Lafayette Ambassador Bank (Nazareth) 113,225
National Penn Bank (Nazareth) 95,471
First Interstate (Wyoming) 5,030
Savings and Money Market Accounts:
First Interstate Savings (Wyoming) 11,868
PayPal Account 36
Vanguard Money Market Fund 81,958
Total Cash in Banks 310,320
Petty Cash 650
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 310,970
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OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

4. Investments

At December 31, 2016 Investment values consist of:

Cost Market
Treasury Obligations —

Money Market Funds $ 990 $ 990
Mutual Funds — Bonds 2,920 2,860
Mutual Funds — Equities 27,610 29,618
Totals $ 31,520 $ 33468

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the
statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Interest and Dividends $ 789

Gains (losses) on Securities Transactions 1,296

Sub-Total 2,085

Investment Fees 410

Total $ 1,675
5. Inventory

Inventory consists of materials held for use by evangelists and others in the course of their
ministries. They are valued at the lower of cost or market on an average cost basis.

6. Other Asset

In September, 2015 a donor donated property consisting of 18 acres of land and a home
located in Mountain Grove, Missouri to the organization. The property is owned by the
organization with the stipulation that the donor maintains the right of possession and
occupancy of the property for the remainder of his natural life. The property is designated
as temporarily restricted net assets until the right of possession and occupancy is fully
relinquished to the organization.

The asset is recorded at fair value, which is determined based on realtor listings of similar
properties in the same area.

-11-



OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

7. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets as of December 31, 2016 consist of the following:

o

Donated Property $ 125,00

8. Property and Equipment

Property and Equipment, at December 31, 2016 consists of:

Accumulated Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value

Vehicles $ 246,007 $ 190,288 $ 55,719
Equipment 32,455 32,455 0
Total $ 278,462 $ 222,743 $ 55,719

Depreciation expense for the year was $ 34,637.

9. Transactions with Related Parties

Certain members of the board of directors are also officers and missionaries of OAC.
Salaries for these individuals are paid under the faith support system described in Note 2,
so there is no conflict of interest in setting salaries. Expenses are reimbursed under an
accountable reimbursable expense policy and are recorded in appropriate expense
categories in the statement of functional expenses.

Members of the board of directors serve without pay for service on the board.

-12-
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OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Concentrations

Deposits with Financial Institutions

The Organization maintains its cash balances in financial institutions and occasionally the
balances aggregate to amounts which exceed the federally insured limits. Accordingly,
those balances would have been at risk of loss in the event of nonperformance by the
institutions. The subject financial institutions are banks and management of the
Organization does not anticipate any nonperformance.

Sources of Funding
Contributions and grants are received from many individuals, foundations and church

organizations throughout the world. During the current fiscal year, five contributors
represented approximately 9.8% of total gifts and grants.

Subseguent Events

Evaluation of Subsequent Events
Subsequent events have been evaluated through July 21, 2017. This is the date these
financial statements were available to be issued.

13-



OPEN AIR CAMPAIGNERS, U.S., INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

12. Fair Value Measurements

The organization adopted ASC 820 as discussed in Note 2. This standard defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. ASC 820 establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the
inputs to valuation used to measure fair value. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into
three broad levels as follows. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full term
of the financial instrument. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based upon the
organizations own assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value. A
financial asset or liability’s classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following table presents information as of December 31, 2016, about the organization’s
financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis,
according to the valuation techniques used to determine their fair values.

Quoted Prices Other Other
in Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs Total Fair
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value
Assets:
Investments:
Money Market Funds $ 990 $ 0 $ 0 $ 990
Mutual Funds — Bonds 2,860 0 0 2,860
Mutual Funds — Equities 29,618 0 0 29,618
Other Asset 0 125,000 0 125,000
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 33.468 $ 125,000 $ 0 $ 158,468
Liabilities:
Actuarial Liability for Annuity Payable $ 0 $_18,748 $ 0 $ _18,748
Total Liabilities at Fair Value $ 0 $_18,748 $ 0 $ _18,748
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Wentzel and Company, PC
PO Box 156
Fleetwood, PA 19522

August 1, 2017

John Cutlip, Director of Central Services
Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc.

Box D

Nazareth, PA 18064

Dear John,

Enclosed is your copy of the 2016 U.S. Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax, for the year ending December 31, 2016.

This return has been filed electronically with the Internal Revenue Service.

No payment was due with this return.

COPY



Form 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

OMB No. 1545-0047

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

2016

» Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
» Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2016 calendar year, or tax year beginning

, 2016, and ending :

D Employer identification number

B Check if applicable: C Nameoforganization Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc.
Address change Doing business as 36-2420024
Number and strest (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered lo slreet address) Room/suite E Telephone number

Name change
Initial return

Firal retumterminated

P.O. Box D

{610) 746-0508

City or town, slate or province, country, and ZIP or foreign poslal code

| [Amendedretum  [Nazareth PA 18064-0520 |G Grossreceipts $1,441,715.
| |Application pending F Name and address of principal officer: H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? Hvea ﬁNo
JOHN CUTLIP PO BOX D NAZARETH P2 18064 | proal subordinatos included? - LIves | Mo
| Taceemtstass  [X[5010Q) | [50100) ( )< (nsetno) | [4%47@)or | [527
J Website: » oacusa. org H{c) Group exemption number »
K Form of organization: ]XICorpora!ion | |Trust ] | Associalion l lOther = l L Year of formation: 1958 | M state of legal domicile: PA
[Part| |Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: __ Proclaim the gospel in the United States.
© Assist and equip local churches in effective open-air outreaches, working through field
£ offices in the US. Open Air Campiagners is an evangelistic ministry of preaching the
£ gospel_to_lost people and mobilizing the Body of Christ primarily through Open Air Outreach.
3| 2 Check this box > if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
S| 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1a). . . . . . . e e e e e 3 8
f, 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line1b) . . . . . . . . oo v v v 4 6
:g 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2016 (Part V,line2a). . . . . .« v v v v v o v v v s 5 28
Z| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . . . . . ... ol c e 6 30
& 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C),lin@ 12 . . . . « . v v v v v v 0 v v v o o v v s 7a 0.
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line34. . . . . . . . .. R R N 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
5 8 Contributions and grants (Part VI, line1h). . . . . . . . . . . ... o0 0. % 1,527,649. 1,407,215.
2| 9 Program service revenue (Part VIl line2g) . . . . . .« . o o oo e e e e
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3,4,and7d) . . . . . . v v v v v v v v 1,868. L2134,
£ | 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢c, 10c,and 11e) . - . . . . . . . . . 7,245, 6,806.
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . 1,536,762. 1,415,155.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A),lines 1-3) . . . . . . . . . .. .
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line4) . . . . . .. ... ... ..
" 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) . . . . . 1,110,302, 1,085,199.
2 16 a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A),line11e) + . . v « v v v v v v v 0 v o s
é— b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) » 63,301.
17 Other expenses (Part [X, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24€). . . . . . + « v v v v v v 0 s 314,999, 319,798.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) . . . . . .. .. 1,425,301. 1,404,997.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line12 . . . . . . . .. @R W e e 111,461, 10,158.
58 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
§_ﬁ 20 Totalassets (Part X, € 16) « « « v« v v v v v v e e e e e e s e 539, 563. 546, 354.
ué 21 Total liabilities (Part X, ine26) . . . . « . . . . . v ol w e oo 23,411. 18,748,
§.§ 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 fromline20 . . . .. . ... i ; 516,152, 527,606,
[Partl [Signature Block

Under penallies of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to Lhe best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and
complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

3 [07/31/17
Si gn Signature of officer Date
Here John Cutlip Director

Type or prinl name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer’s signature Date Check [_I if PTIN
Paid Vivian Wentzel UWJZ(’j/@nj 08/01/17 seff-employed  |P00367964
Preparer |Fimsname ™ Wentzel and Company PC N
Use Only Firm's address  * PO Box 156 Fim'sEIN™ 47-2237545

Fleetwood PA 19522 Phoneno, (484) 725-4181

May the RS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see inStructions) « . « « « « v« v v v v v v v v oo u ... |X| Yes | |No

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

TEEAQ101 11/16/16

Form 990 (2016)



Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 2
Part Il | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments D

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part Il . . . . . .. .. dtiu e M GewGE & W e W Oy i u
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the prior

FOM 990 OF 890-EZ7. « + « v+ v e e e e e e e e |_—_] Yes No
If 'Yes,' describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?. . . . . . |:| Yes No

If 'Yes,' describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses,
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4 a (Code: ) (Expenses S 1,180,359, including grants of $ 0. )(Revenue $ 6,806.)

4 ¢ (Code: ) (Expenses S including grants of  $ ) (Revenue S )

4 d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses S including grants of S ) (Revenue $ )

4 e Total program service expenses ™ 1,180,3589.
BAA TEEA0102 11/16/16 Form 990 (2016)




Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024

|Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

10

1"

12

15

16

17

18

19

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? /f 'Yes,’ complete
Schedule A. o . v v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? . . .« . . . . v o v v v v s

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates
for public office? /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part]. . . . . « v v v v v v v v v v v s it e e e e e e

Section 501,(c)13) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election
in effect during the tax year? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule C, Part Il . .". . . . .« .« v v v v i i v vt v v e

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule C, Part il . . . . . . .

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right
to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D,
= Y G 1

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the
environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? I/f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part !l . . . . . . .« . .« oo

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If 'Yes,’
complete Schedule D, Part Ill. . . .« « « o v v v v i e e e e e e e e e e

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation
services? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IV . . . . o v« o 0 i i e e e e e e e e

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part V . « . « .« « . . v o v oo oo

If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, 1X,
or X as applicable.

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule
D, Part Vi, o o o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

b Did the organization report an amount for investments — other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part VII. . . . . . . . . .« v 0 v v i i i it v i

¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments — program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part VIIl . . . . . « . . . v v v v v v v v v ot v

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported
in Part X, line 167 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part IX . . . . v« o o o v i i i i e e e e e e

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part X . . . . . . .

f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, PartX . . . . .

a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? /f 'Yes,’ complete
Schedule D, Parts XTand Xl . . .« « v v v v e i e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,” and
if the organization answered 'No’ to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X/ and X!l is optional . . . . . . . . .. . ..

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Parts land IV . . . . « . . .0 o0 v v i v i v i i d e e

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts lland IV . . . . . . . . . . oo v v o i n e e

Did the organization report on Part [X, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Parts llland IV . . . . . . . . . 0 v v v v i v i i i i i d e e e

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions) . . . . . .« « v v v v v v v v o

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VI,
lines 1c and 8a? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule G, Partll . . . . . . .« . o i e e e e

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?/f 'Yes,’
complete Schedule G, Partlll. . . . . o v v v v v e e e e e e e e e s

Page 3
Yes | No
1 X
2 X
3 X
4 X
5 X
6 X
7 X
8 X
9 X
10 X
11a| X
11b X
11¢ X
11d| X
11e| X
11| X
12a| X
12b X
13 X
14a X
14b X
15 X
16 X
17 X
18 X
19 X

BAA TEEA0103  11/16/16

Form 990 (2016)



Form 890 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 4
[Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule H . . . . . . . . . . . .00 20a X
b If'Yes' to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? . . . . . . . .. ... 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 17 /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule I, Parts land il . . . . . . .. .. . ... 21 X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX,
column (A), line 27 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule I, Parts land Il . . . . . . . <« . oo v v n s s e 22 X
23 Did the organization answer 'Yes’ to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If 'Yes,’ complete
SCHEAUIE J « .+ v v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 23 X
24 a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of
the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If 'Yes,’ answer lines 24b through 24d and
complete Schedule K. If'No, ‘goto line 258. « .« « « v v v v v i i i e e e e e s 243 X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . . . . . . . . .. .. 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exempt boNdS?. « « . . v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e 24¢
d Did the organization act as an 'on behalf of issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . . . . . ... ... .. 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part | . . . . . . .« . oo v v o v u 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the fransaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If 'Yes,” complete
Schedule L, Part! . . v« o v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or
former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons?
If 'Yes,  complete Schedule L, Partll « . . . . . o v i i i e e e e e e e e s 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Partlll . . . . . . <« v v v v v i i it i o e e 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . <. ... 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? /f 'Yes,’ complete
SCREUIE L, PAMt IV. « « v v v v et e e e e e e e e e e e 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an
officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . o v v 0o v o 28¢c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule M . . . . . . . . . .. 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule M . . . . . . . . . e e e e 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? /f 'Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part /. . . . . . .. 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If 'Yes,” complete
Schedule N, Part Il . « <« « o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part| . . . . . . . . . v v v v vt i i e e e e 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part i, lil, or IV,
and Part V. line 1. « o v v v i o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . . . . . .« v v v v v v o o i v 35a X
b If 'Yes' to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . . . . . . 0 v v o v 35b X
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
organization? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . .« . .« o i i i e 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Part VI . . . . . . . .. .. ... .. 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O . . . . . . . . . 0 v v v v i v i 38 X
BAA Form 990 (2016)

TEEAO0104 11/16/16



Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 5

|Part V | Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note toany lineinthisPart V.. . . . v v v v v v v v i v v vt i v i v i e i e o ﬂ
Yes | No
1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . . . .. .. 1a 0
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . . . 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) wWinnings to prize WINNErs? . . . . v v v v v v i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 1¢
2 a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . . . . . 2a 28
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . . . . . . . . .. 2b| X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
3 a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more duringtheyear?. . . . . . . . . . . .00 . 3a X
b If ¥es,+has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If ‘No' fo line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . .o oo v oo w o 3b
4 a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account or other financial account)? . . .+ . . . .. 4a X
b If 'Yes,' enter the name of the foreign country: >
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear?. . . . . . . . . . ... .. 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?. . . . . . . . ... 5b X
c If 'Yes,' to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . . . . . . « . .« « c o v o v e e e 5¢
6 a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . . . . . . . .. .o oo oL 6a X
b If 'Yes,’ did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were
nottax deductible? . . . . . o o o L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and
services provided tothe payor?. . . . o . v o e e e e e e e e e e e e s 7a X
b If 'Yes,’ did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . . . . .. ... .. ... 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to file
FOrm 82827 .« v v i v i i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7¢ X
d If 'Yes,’ indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed duringtheyear . . . + . « . . o v v o v o s | 7d|
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . . .. 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . .. ... 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899
ASTeqUIrEd? « v v v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
FOrm 1098-C? » & v v v o i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring
organization have excess business holdings at any time duringtheyear?. . . . . . . . . o oo oo oo 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 . . . . . . . . . . . ... o000l 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?. . . . . . . . . . . .. .. 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part Vill, line12. . . . . . . .. . ... .. 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIIl, tine 12, for public use of club facilities . . . . . 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders. . . . . .« . . . . . 0 000 e e 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received fromthem.). . . . . . .. .. oo 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?. . . . . . . . . . 12a
b If 'Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . . . . . | 12b|
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more thanone state? . . . . . . . . v v v v v v v v v v w0 o 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans . . . . . . ... . ... ... 13b
¢ Enterthe amountof reservesonhand . . . . . . . . . . .o e e e 13¢
14 a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the taxyear?. . . . .« .« v oo v o0 v v w0 14a X
b If 'Yes, has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? /f ‘No,’ provide an explanation in Schedule O. . . . . .« . . . . . .. 14b
BAA TEEA0105 11/16/16 Form 990 (2016)



Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 6
Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes’ response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for

a 'No’ response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in

Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartVl. . . . . . . ..o v v v v v v v oo v M

Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1 a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . . . . . 1a 8
If there are material differences in voting rights among members
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . . . . . 1b 6
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, orkey employee? . . . . . v . o o e e e e e e e 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or otherperson? . . . . . .« v o« o oL 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents
since the prior Form 990 was filed?. . . . . . o o o o 0 o e e e e 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . . . . . . . . ... 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . .« . . o o o o i e e e e s 6 X
7 a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or more
members of the governing body? . . . . . & . L L L e e e e e e e e 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . o L o e e e e e e e s 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by
the following:
aThegoverning body? . . . . . v v v i i e e e e e e e e e e s 8a| X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . oo v o v v v v d e 8b| X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization's mailing address? If 'Yes,’ provide the names and addresses in Schedule O . . . . .« « v v v v v 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . « « v v v v v v v v v v v v e e e 10a| X
b If ¥es,+did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, and branches to ensure their
operations are consistent with the organization 8 exeMPtPUPOSES? - « « « « + « v v v b b b e e e e e e e e e e e s 10b] X
11 a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its goveming body before filingtheform? . . . . v« v v 0 0 0 0 11a X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If No,"gotoline 13. « . . « . « v v v v v v v i v i v i v v v 12a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise
B0 CONFlICES? & - v v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 12b| X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f 'Yes,’ describe in
Schedule O how thiSWasS done . . « v v v v v v i v v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 12¢| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblowerpolicy? . . . . . . . . o v o i s e e e e e 13 X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . « « « « « v v v v v v v h e 14 X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . .. . v v oo 15a] X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization. . . . . . . . .« o o i v it L e s 15b| X
If 'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16 a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity duringthe YEar? . . « v v v v v v i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 16a X
b If 'Yes,’ did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements?. . . . . . . oo e e e e e e 16b
Section C. Disclosure
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed > pennsylvania

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

D Own website Another's website Upon request D Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its goveming documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to
the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records: >
John Cutlip 812 Bangor Road, Nazareth, PA 18064-0520 (610) 746-0508
BAA TEEA0106 11/16/16 Form 990 (2016)




Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 7
Part VII ICompensatnon of Officers, Directors, Trustees Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto any lineinthis Part VIl . . . . . . . v v @ v v v o oo oo vt o v v e o n v D
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.
® | ist all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employee.’
® |ist the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.
® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated
employees; and former such persons.

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

©)
A) (B) | thanone box. uniess parson (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average is both an officer and a Reportable Reportable Estimated
h%l#f $ director/trustee) cct)rr]npensalion"from clortn%snsaliqn ftr_om amount of (igher
veok [& 3] 2123 B[S Warbssse) | “twaricbamise) “Homthe
h(I|st any g. = = =t Rl 1+ —g g organization
ours for 2ol 5| g2 3= and related
orrzlaar:?zda- 5 5- 9 -g_ s = organizations
tions g = S §
below @ g @
dotted g o
line) 2 §
Q.
_) Larry Baker ______ _______] _2.00
Secretary/Treasurer X X 0. 0. 0.
_@_Eric Briscoe ____________| 40.00
Board Member X 63,573. 0. 0.
5. Bob BHerth e e 40.00
Vice-Chairman X X 32,910, 0. 0.
_{4)_Scott PODE mimm wimiir s s ~2.00
Board Member X 0. 0. 0.
_®_Jon sShader _____ __________ ~2.00
Board Member X 0. 0. 0.
_®_Rex Trent _______________ _2.00
Chairman X X 0 0. 0
_D_Jgoe Toy._ . ______________ ] ~2.00
Board Member X 0. 0. 0.
=8 Dave Trout _ . uwawansesomd _2.00
Board Member X 0 0 0
) I e
w._ e
. o
Wz ] L
¢’ ] L
s o

BAA TEEA0107 11/16/16 Form 990 (2016)



Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 8
IPart VIl ISection A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(B) (€)
Positi
(A) Aﬁ/erage édo notlcheglfln:%r:e'thl?nu?ne (D) (E) (F)
. ours 0X, unless person Is bolh an i
Name and title v»?:ék of)f<icer and g directorftrustee) com’;:ﬁg:k[a:rl\e_from com%?e%gzag#efr_om amES::rtnoafti?her
oy R Z1Q]F BAT| WomRR | WS | Temia
hours:  jo S = = | |83 3 organization
Ifotr s 28 g g3l g 3 and related
g?gaar?aa % & § -g_ 8 § organizations
- tions E‘ - 'S 3
bel
e | BE| %) 8
line) 8 Bﬁ"
(R
1) e e i o o i A S e
- L) AU —— S
an
s ]
we ]
A20) e e s srare
1) s eeess s p—
(2 ]
8 ]
4y ]
{2
1DSUDLOtal. « v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e AR SR R R .- 96,483, Oi4 0.
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, Section A . . . . . . ... .. .. >
dTotal (addlines1band1c) . . . . .« . v o v v v i e s > 96,483, 0. 0.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation
from the organization ™ 0
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule J for such individual . . . « « .« o v oo o c e e e e e 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 If 'Yes,” complete Schedule J for
SUCh INAIVIdUA! « « « « v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 4 X
§ Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for SUCh PErson . . . « « « v « v v v v v v v o v v v o 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
{A) (B _ )y
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization ™
BAA TEEA0108 11/16/16 Form 990 (2016)




Form 990 (2016)

Open Air Campaigners,

U.S.,

Inc.

36-2420024

[Part VIl | Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII|

(A)
Total revenue

(B}
Related or
exempt
function
revenue

(C)
Unrelated
business

revenue

(D)
Revenue
excluded from tax
under sections

512-514

1 a Federated campaigns
b Membership dues
¢ Fundraisingevents. . . . . . .
d Related organizations
e Govemment grants (contributions) . .

f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
similar amounts not induded above .

h Total. Add lines 1a-1f

Contributions, Gifts, Grants
and Other Similar Amounts

1a

1b

1c

1d

1e

1f

1,407,215.

g Noricash contributions included in lines 1a—1f: g

1,407,215,

2a

Cc

d

e

Program Service Revenue

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f

Business Code

f All other program service revenue . . .

3 Investment income (including dividends, interest and
other similaramounts) . . . . . . . ... .00 >

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds . . *
5 Royalties. . . . . . v v o i oo e >

1,134,

1,134,

(i) Real

(i) Personal

6 a Gross rents

b Less: rental expenses

¢ Rental income or (loss) . -

d Net rental income or (loss) « « « « « + . .

7 a Gross amount from sales of

(i) Securities

(ii) Other

assets other than invertory

b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses . . .

¢ Gain or (loss)

(not including. . $

d Netgainor{loss). . . « . . o« v v s 3

8 a Gross income from fundraising events

of contributions reported on line 1

b Less: direct expenses

Other Revenue

9a Gross income from gaming activit

b Less: direct expenses

and allowances
b Less: cost of goods sold

c).

SeePart IV, linet18. . . ... .. ..

ies.

See Part IV, line19. . . . .. .. ..

10a Gross sales of inventory, less returns

¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory

¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraisingevents . . . . . . .

¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities. . . . . . . .

a 33,366.

b 26,560.

6,806,

6,806,

Miscellaneous Revenue

Business Code

1,415,155,

7,940.

0.

BAA

TEEA0109 11/16/16

Form 990 (2016)



Form 990 (2016)

Open Air Campaigners,

U.S., Inc.

36-2420024

Page 10

[Part IX [ Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

90 onincludeiamounts fepolted.on lines Total é%enses Progra?‘r?)service Managér?'n)ent and Fund(g)ising
6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part Vill. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic
organizations and domestic governments.
SeePartIV, line21. . . . .. ... ... ...
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22. . . . .. ...
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and for-
eign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16 . .
4 Benefits paid to or formembers. . . . . . . ..
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees . . . . . . . . .. 96,483 82,011. 9,648. 4,824,
g Compensation not included above, to
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)) and persons described
in section 4958(c)(3)(B). - + « + . o . oo .
7 Othersalaries and wages- - - . - . . . . . .. 926,559. 787,575, 92,656. 46,328.
g Pension plan accruals and contributions
(include section 401(k) and 403(b)
employer contributions). . . . . ... ...
9 Other employee benefits . . . . . . ... ...
10 Payrolltaxes . . . . . . . .. ... 62,157. 52,833. 6,216. 3,108.
11 Fees for services (non-empioyees):
aManagement. . . . .. .. ..o
blegal. . . ... .. .. .. 0.
cAccounting « + + v . v e 7,878, 0. 7.878. 0.
dlobbying. . . .. ... ... ...,
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 . .
f Investment managementfees . . ... .. .. 410. 348 . 41. 21 .
g Other. (If line 11g amount exoeeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.) . . .
12 Advertising and promotion . . . . . . . . ... 2,219, 1,109, 555, 555,
13 Officeexpenses . . . . .. ... ....... 38,150. 26,705. 9,538, 1,907.
14 Information technology . . . . . . . . .. ...
16 Royalties. . . .« .« . . oo oo
16 Occupancy . « - « « v v v h e e e e 16,521. 13,217, 2,478. B26.
17 Travel - . v o v o v v v e 14,003. 12,883. 420. 700.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment
expenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials . . . . . ... ... oL
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . . .
20 Interest. . . . . . 0 e e b e e e s
21 Payments to affiliates. . . . . . . . .. on s
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. . . 34,637. 25,978. 6,927. 1,732,
23 INSUANCE + + « v v v v e e e e 9,591. 4,796, 4,316, 479.
24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not
covered above (List miscellaneous expenses
in line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e
expenses on ScheduleQ.) . . . . . .. .. ..
a Fvangelism Supplies _ _ _ _ _ _ | 157,472 157,472 Q 0]
baffiliation Fees_ _ _ _ _ | 5,477 1,917, 1,917 1,643
€C Telephohe oo o o | 5,107 2,054 2,043 510
d postage _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ______| 6,666 2,664, 3,334 668
eAllotherexpenses . . « v v v v v v v v v v o s 21,667. 8,297. 13,370, 0.
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e. . 1,404,997, 1,180,359. 161,337. 63,301.

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if
the organization reported in column (B)

joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.

Check here > if following

SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720). « « « « v v v 0 v v s

BAA

TEEA0110 11/16/16

Form 990 (2016)



Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 11
|Part X |Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note toany lineinthisPart X . . . . v v v v v v v v v v i v i s i e n e s e e D
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash —non-interest-bearing . . . . . . . . o o e 163,162.| 1 217,108.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . . . . . ..o o0 93, 746. 2 93,862.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net. . . . . . . ..o Lo oo 3
4 Accountsreceivable net . . . . . . ..o Lo e 7,699,| 4 52,
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part Il of Schedule L . . v v v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees'
beneficiary organizations (see instructions). Complete Part || of Schedule L . . . . . 6
a 7 Notes and loans receivable, net . . . . . . . . .. o oo e 7
§ g8 Inventoriesforsaleoruse . . . . . . oL oo 26,058.| 8 21,145,
<L | g Prepaid expenses and deferredcharges . . . . . . . . . o000 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis.
Complete Part VI of ScheduleD . . . . . . ... ... 10a 278,462
b Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . .. ... 10b 222,743. 90,356.| 10¢ 55,719,
11 Investments — publicly traded securities . . . . . . .. o0 .0 e s 33,542,111 33,468.
12 Investments — other securities. See Part IV, line 11 . .« « « « ¢« v v v v v v v 0 0 s 12
13 Investments — program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . .« « v v v o v v v v o 13
14 Intangibleassets. . . . . . . L e e e e e e e s 14
15 Otherassets. See PartIV,line 11 . . . . . o v v i vt v et e o e e 125,000.115 125,000.
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequal line34) . . . . . .« v v v o 539,563.] 16 546, 354 .
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses. . « . . . . o i e e e s 3,837.117 0.
18 Grantspayable. . . . . . o 0L e e e e 18
19 Deferredrevenue . . . v« v v v i h e e e e e e e e e e e e 19
20 Tax-exemptbondliabilities . . . . . . . . . . . e 20
g 21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of ScheduleD . . . . . . . . 21
i=| 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
e key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
g Complete Part llof Schedule L. . .« . v o v v oo e i e 22
23 Secured mortgages and notes payabie to unrelated third parties . . . . . . .. ... 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . ... .. .. 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D . . . 19,574.| 25 18, 748.
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25. . . . . . . . . . . . . .o oo v v s 23,411.| 26 18, 748.
s Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here ™ and complete
8 lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
% 27 Unrestrictednetassets. . . . . . v v o v i i e e e e e e e 391,152.| 27 402, 606.
g 28 Temporarily restricted netassets . . . . . . . . o oo oo oo 125,000.| 28 125, 000.
= | 29 Permanently restricted netassets . . . . ... ... o o0 29
uS_ Organizations t.hat do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here > D
5 and complete lines 30 through 34.
& 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or currentfunds. . . . « . . . o . oL oo 30
8| 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund . . . . .. ... 31
&o 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds. . . . . . « . . 32
g 33 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances. . . . . . . . . oL e e e 516,152.| 33 527,606,
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . . . . . . .. ... ... G R e G 539,563, | 34 546,354,
BAA Form 990 (2016)
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Form 990 (2016) Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 12

[Part XI_|Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart Xl . .« v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v i v i i e e ﬂ
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . .« . v o v 0 v i v i vt i i i e e e e 1 1,415,155,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A),line 25) . . . . . . . oo e e 2 1,404,997,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtractline 2 fromline 1. . . . . . . . o o o i e e 3 10,158.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A)). . . . . v v v o v v vt 4 516,152.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments.. . . . . .« .« . o Lo o e e e e e e 5 1,296.
6 Donated services and use of facilities. . . . . . . . . . o Lo e e e e e e s 6
7 INVEStMENt EXPENSES . « « « + v v v v v v s s s e e e e h e e e e e e a e e e e a4 e 4 s s 7
8 Priorperiod adjustments « . v o v v vt u e e e e e e e e b e e e e e e e e e e e 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) . . . . . .« . o v v v oo v o v o 9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
column {(B)) i 5 « wrase w0 w s w @ acwiE @ e s w W sl @ e sels Gs B sless s KA W a & e 4w e 10 527,606,
[Part XIl |Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart XIl . . . . o v o v v v v v v v v v v i v v v e e as H
Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: DCash Accrual |:|Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,’ explain
in Schedule O.

2 a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . .. . . . .. 2a X

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
Sﬁarate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis DConsolidated basis DBoth consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . . .. oo 2b| X

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis DConsoIidated basis DBoth consolidated and separate basis
¢ If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,

review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . . . . . . .. .. . o0 2¢| X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain
in Schedule O.
3 a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single
Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1332. « v & ot v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3a X
b If 'Yes,’ did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . . . . . .. ... ......... 3b
BAA Form 990 (2016)
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Public Charity Status and Public Support OMB No. 15450047

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 201 6
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
» Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

> Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is

SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Open to Public

Department of the Treasury Inspection

Internal Revenue Service at www.irs.gov/form990.
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024

[Part|] |Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){(1)(A)(i).

2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ2).)

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1){(A)iii).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's
name, city, and state:

5 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)

6 . A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

d An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described
in section 170(b)(1){(A){(vi). (Complete Part II.)

8 D A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

9 An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 D An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts
from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its support from gross
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after
June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Il.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported
organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting organization. You must
complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b D Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported organization(s). You
must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) that is not
functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type Ill functionally
integrated, or Type IIl non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported organizations . « « v« v ¢« v e s b a e e b e e e e e e e e e e e e l:]

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organizalion (i} EIN {iil) Type of organization (iv) Is the {v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
(described on lines 1-10 organization listed support (see instructions) support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) in your governing

document?
Yes No

(A)

(B)

(€)

(B)

(E)

Total

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016

TEEAQ401 09/28/16



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016 Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 2
Part Il |Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b){(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lIl. If the
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 1ll.)

Section A. Public Support

S:;Qgﬁ{ Joar (oriScaliyEar (a) 2012 (b) 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 () 2016 (f) Total
1 Gis, grants, contributions, and
rrmtefshipfwsmeivedgxru
include any tinusualgrants.y . . . . [1,212,772.]1,437,283.]1,360,329.11,527,649.(1,407,215.| 6,945,248.

2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended
onitsbehalf . . .. ... ...

3 The value of services or
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. . .

4 Total. Add lines 1 through3 . . |1 212 772.|1,437,283.]1,360,329.11,527,649.(1,407,215.| 6,945,248,

5 The portion of total
contributions by each person
(other than a governmental
unit or publicly supported
organization) included on line 1
that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) . . 0.

6 Public support. Subtract line 5
fromline4 . .. ... ... .. 6,945, 248.

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year
beginning In) > (a) 2012 (b) 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 (e) 2016 (f) Total
7 Amounts fromline4 . .. ... 1,212,772.|1,437,283.]|1,360,329.(1,527,649.|1,407,215.| 6,945,248.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royaities and income from
similar sources . . . . . . .. 3,903. 6,585. 1,966. -51. 1,134, 13,537.

9 Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business is regutarly
carriedon . . . . ... ..

10 Other income. Do not include
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in

PartVl) . . ... oo oo .
11 Total support. Add lines 7

through 10 . . . . .. .. ... 6,958,785,
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions). + .+« « v v v v oo c e e e e [ 12 154, 421.
13 First five years. if the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box andstop here. . . . . . . . . . o i e e e e e > [:]

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14 Public support percentage for 2016 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . . . . . v v v v o v v o s 14 99 .81 %
15 Public support percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Partil, line 14 . . . . . . .« « v v v v v v i i e s e 15 89.83 %
16a 33-1/3% support test—2016. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . .. oo e 3

b 33-1/3% support test—2015. [f the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . ... oo o c e > D
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—20186. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and fine 14 is 10%

or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how

the organization meefs the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . ... > D

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2015. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10%

or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the

organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . .. ... .. >
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions . . . . . >

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016 Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 3

[Part lll_|Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) > (a) 2012 (b) 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 {e) 2016 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions,
and membership fees
received. (Do not include
any 'unusualgrants.). . . . . .

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is
related to the organization's
tax-exempt purpose . . . . . .

3 Gross receipts from activities
that are not an unrelated trade
or business under section 513 .

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended on
itsbehalf . . . ... ... ...

5 The value of services or
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. . .

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 . .

7a Amounts included on lines 1,
2, and 3 received from
disqualified persons . . . . . .

b Amounts included on lines 2
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
fortheyear. . . . . ... ...

¢ Addlines7aand7b . ... ..

8 Public support. (Subtract line
7cfromline6.). . . .. .. ..

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) > (a) 2012 (b) 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 (e) 2016 (f) Total

9 Amounts fromline6 . . .. ..

10a Gross income frominterest, dividends,
s received on securities loans,
rents, royalties and income from
simlarsouroes . . . . . . 0.

b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 . .

¢ Addlines10aand10b . . . . .

11 Net income from unrelated business
adivities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly camiedon . . . . . .

12 Other income. Do not include
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
PartVIL) . . ... ... ...,

13 Total support. (Add lines 9,
10c, 11,and12)) . . . . . . ..

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this boxandstophere. . . . . . . . . ... .. .. W e W e W e 8 E SN e e es
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2016 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) + . « « « « v o v v v v v v v v o 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Partll, line15. . . . . . . . ... ..o v« Vil A Rl Ak 16 g
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2016 (line 10c¢, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)). . « .« . -« oo o0 v o 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Part lll, line 17 . . . .« . . . . o v L S W W RERIE W B 6 18 %
1%a 33-1/3% support tests—20186. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1/3%, and line 17
is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . .. .. > D
b 33-1/3% support tests—2015. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33-1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . >
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions. . . . . . . .. .. > |:|

BAA TEEAQ403  09/28/16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016 Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 4
Part IV_|Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part . If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections
A and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12¢ of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part {, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing documents?
If ‘No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, describe
the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status under section
509(a)(1) or (2)? If 'Yes,’” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If 'Yes,” answer (b)
and (c) below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f 'Yes,’ describe in Part VI when and how the organization
made the determination. 3b

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes,’ explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (foreign supported organization’)? /f *Yes' and
if you checked 12a or 12b in Part |, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate controf and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign supported
organization? /f 'Yes,’ describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlled
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination under
sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If 'Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used to ensure that
all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f 'Yes,” answer (b)
and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the supported
organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; (iii) the authority under the
organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action was accomplished (such as by

amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in the

organization's organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii} individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one
or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of
the filing organization’s supported organizations? /f 'Yes,’ provide detail in Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If 'Yes,’ complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77 /f 'Yes,’
complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more disqualified persons
as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))?
If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 9a

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which the
supporting organization had an interest? /f 'Yes,’ provide detail in Part VI. 9b

¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from,
assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If 'Yes,’ provide detail in Part V1. 9¢

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 4843(f) (regarding
certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type |l non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If ‘Yes,’
answer 10b below. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determine
whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

BAA TEEAQ404 09/28/16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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|Part IV_| Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) below, the
governing body of a supported organization? 11a

b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b

¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If 'Yes’ to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI. 11¢
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint
or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the tax year? If '‘No,” describe in
Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities.
If the organization had more than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove
directors or trustees were allocated among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any,
applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported organization(s)
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If 'Yes,’ explain in Part VI how providing such
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the
supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees
of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f ‘No,’ describe in Part VI how control or management of the

supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed the supported organization(s). 1
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? /f ‘No,” explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a significant
voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's income or assets at
all times during the tax year? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI the role the organization’s supported organizations played
in this regard. 3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year(see instructions).
a |:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b I:l The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

c D The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the
supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If 'Yes,' then in Part VI identify those supported
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted
substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more of
the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? /f 'Yes,’ explain in Part VI the reasons for
the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these activities but for the
organization’s involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees of
each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part V. 3a

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each of its
supported organizations? If 'Yes,’ describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b

BAA TEEA0405 09/28/16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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[PartV [Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov, 20, 1970 (explain in Part Vl). See

instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A — Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

an|h W=

DS N

income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for
production of income (see instructions)

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross

7 Other expenses (see instructions)

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4).

Section B — Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short

tax year or assets held for part of year):

a Average monthly value of securities

1a

b Average monthly cash balances

1b

¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1¢

d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

1d

e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

S

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by .035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

QD iN|PDd® O

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

X |IN|O[OW |

Section C — Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A)

Enter 85% of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

|d(w N>

DW=

temporary reduction (see instructions).

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency

6

-~

(see instructions).

Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Il supporting organization

BAA
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[Part V| Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D — Distributions

Current Year

1

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported organizations,

in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

X IN|O | |A W

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive (provide details

in Part VI). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2016 from Section C, line 6

10

Line 8 amount divided by Line 9 amount

Section E — Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

(i)

Excess

Distributions

ii) (iii)
Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2016 Amount for 2016

1

Distributable amount for 2016 from Section C, line 6

2

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2016 (reasonable
cause required — explain in Part VI). See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2016:

From2013 . « + v v « v v«

From2014 . . . . « « v o

From2015 . . . . . . ...

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2016 distributable amount

Carryover from 2011 not applied (see instructions)

e | = [T (@ | |OD |Q|O |T |D

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

Distributions for 2016 from Section D,
line 7: )

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b Applied to 2016 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2016, if any.
Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater than
zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2016. Subtract lines 3h and 4b
from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See
instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2017. Add lines 3j and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2013 . . . .

Excess from 2014 . . .

Excess from 2015 . . .

(-]
o Q|0 |(o|®

Excess from 2016 . . .

BAA

TEEA0407
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Part VI |Su temental Informatlon anations required by Part |1, line 10; Partll ||ne17aor17bPartI|I line 12 PartIV
l_JSngP 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a6 9a,9b 113, 11l§eqand 1gy IV, Section B, linés 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,

Part IV, SectlonD lines 2 and 3; Part IV, SechonE,lln&ﬂc 23, 2b, 3a, and 3b; PartV, ||ne1 PartV SecﬂonB line 1e; PartV

gonD lines 5, 6, and 8; andPartV SectjonE lines 2, 5, and 6. Alsooorrpletethlspartforanyaddltlonal informmation.

( mstruduons)
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) . OMB No. 1545-0047
SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements i
(Form 990) » Complete if the organization answered 'Yes’ on Form 990, 201 6
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

» Attach to Form 990. open to Public
B L > Information about Schedule D (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024

|Part1 | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts
1 Total numberatendofyear . .. .. .. ...
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)
3 Aggregate value of grants from (duringyear) . . . . . .
4 Aggregate valueatendofyear. . . . . . . ..
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . . . . « .« v o v v 0oL DYes D No

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible Private BENEMIt? « « « « « v o« v v v et e e e e e e e e e DYes D No

Part Il _|Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes’ on Form 990, Part |V, line 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat EPreservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the
last day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservationeasements . . . . . . . .« i e e s e e e e 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservationeasements . . . . . . . . . . .. o000 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure includedin(a) . . . . . . . .. 2¢
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a historic
structure listed in the National Register . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 v v v i i e e e 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year >

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located >
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,

and enforcement of the conservation easements it holdS? .+ + « « « v v v b b bt e e e e DYes |:| No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
»

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
>3
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) |:|Y D
es No

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)? « « « « v v i e e e e e e e e e e

9 In Part XllI, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements.

Part Il |Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes’ on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1 a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
ant, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide,
in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the
following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIIl, line 1 . . .« v v v v v v v v i v v i o m e n v o s >S5

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . .. . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ()

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following
amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 890, Part VI, lin€ 1 = « « v v v v v v v v v v v i v v o v m m e e -

b Assets included in FOrm 990, Part X « + v v v v v v i v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e > S

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. TEEA3301 08/15/16 Schedule D (Form 990) 2016



Schedule D (Form 990) 2016 Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 2
|Part ll_|Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
items (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly research e Other
c Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in
Part XIH.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection?. . . . . . . . . . ... .. D Yes DNO

|Part Iv_| Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV,
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
ONFOrM 990, Part X 2. &« v v v ot e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e |:| Yes DNo
b If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table:
Amount
cBeginningbalance . . . . . .. . . e e e e e e e e e 1c
d Additions duringtheyear . . . . . v v . v o i e e e e e e e e 1d
e Distributions duringtheyear . . . . . . . . o . Lol e e e e e e e 1e
f Endingbalance. . . . « . o oo i i i s e e e e o W G el 4R Blerie G 1f
2 a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? . . . . . . ]_| Yes No
b If 'Yes, explain the arrangement in Part XlII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIIl . . . . . v v v v v vy H

|Part V_|Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year {b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

1 a Beginning of year balance . . .
b Contributions . . . . . . .. ...

¢ Net investment earnings, gains,
andlosses . . . . . 0w

d Grants or scholarships . . . . .

e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs . . . . .o ...

f Administrative expenses . . . .
g End of year balance . . . . . .
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment > %
b Permanent endowment > %
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment > %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.

3 a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e Ja(i)
(i) related organizations . . - .« .« . . . e e e e e e s 3a(ii)

b If 'Yes' on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? . . . . . . . . v . oo v v o 3b

4 Describe in Part Xl the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

|Part VI |Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis {b) Cost or other (¢) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) basis (other) depreciation
faland . . . .« o e e
bBuildings . . . .« . . e
¢ Leasehold improvements . . . . . e e e
dEquipment . . . . . .o e e e 32,455, 32,455, 0.
eOther. . . . .- --::---.-:.: Lo vee 246,007, 190,288, 55,719.
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10¢.) . . « « . + v v v v v v v i . = 55,719.
BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2016 open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024 Page 3

[Part VIl | Investments — Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (induding name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value
(1) Financial derivatives . . . .« .« v v oo v e e e
(2) Closely-held equity interests « . « « « . v v v v v v o0

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 12) . . »

[Part VIl | Investments — Program Related. . _
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11¢c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment {b) Book value {c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

()
()
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
()
(8)
(@)
(10)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X,_column (B) fine 73.). . »
Part IX | Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
{a) Description (b) Book value

(1) Donated property for future use 125,000,
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
9
(10)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 15.) . . . « . v« v v v v v v v o v v v v s o a0 0 as > 125,000.

|[Part X__|Other Liabilities.
Corrplete if the organization answered ¥es+on Fom990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Fom 990, Part X line 25

(a) Description of liability (b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
() ACTUARIAL LIABILITY FOR ANNUITY PAYABLE 18,748.
(3
(4)
5
(6)
()
(8)
(%)
(10)
(11
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 25.) . . . . » 18,748,
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XL, provide the text of the footnote to the organizations financial statements that reports the organizations liability for uncertain
tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has beenprovided inPart XIIl « « o v v v v v v v s i i e e [X|

BAA TEEA3303 08/15/16 Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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|Part XI _|Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . .« . v v v v oo 1 1,416,451,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments . . . . . . .« . . v oo 2a 1,296.

b Donated services and use of facilities. . . . . . . . .. W W TR W REEE R W R 2b

c Recoveries of prioryeargrants - . . .« v v v i v v h e e s e e e e s e e 2c

d Other (Describe inPart XII1.) - .« « v v v i v it i i i i i i e .. | 2d

eAddlines2athrough2d . . .« v v v vt v i e e e e e e R R R LR 2e 1,296.
3 Subtractline2efromline . .« v v v v o v 0 e e e e e e e e e R AR E R R, 3 1,415,155,
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part Vill, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line 7b. . . « . . . .+ . 4a

b Other (Describe inPart XIIL) . . .« o v o v v i e e e 4b

cAddlinesdaanddb . . . . . . . L L e e e e e e e e e e e AT W B w RN M A 4c
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part ], line 12.). « « « v v v v v v v v c v v v v v s 5 1,415,155,

|Part XIl |Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements. . . « <« « o L e e e e 1 1,404,997,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities. . . . . . . . . . .. 0000 2a

bPrioryearadjustments . . . . . . ... o e e 2b

COtherlosses +» + « « « v v v v v v v v v v v 4 w s w MgEAnE w w ang 56D 2¢

d Other (DescribeinPart XIIL) - - « v v v v v v v it v v v v o v v o e e v s 2d

e Add lines 2athrough2d . . . . ... ... ...... A B NG @ R T B A N R R R 2e
3 Subtractline2efromlined . . . .« . . . o o i e e e e e s ST A B SR W W W el .3 1,404,997,
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, line 7b. . . . . . . . - 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIl.) . . . . . © sl e @ E BUSDE 8 Se 8w s e e 4b

CAddlinesd4aandd4b . . . . . . . i v i i e e s GG N e e N WL D m e 4c
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part], line 18.) . . . « . « v v v o v v 0 v v o 5 1,404,997,

[Part XIll [ Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part Ill, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V,
line 4; Part X, line 2; Part X, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

There were no uncertain income tax positions identified that would have
a material effect on the financial statements for the year ended
Pt X, Line 2 December 31, 2016.

BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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SCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Inlernal Revenue Service

OMB No, 1545-0047

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 201 6
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

» Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.

> Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is IOPe“ toi Public
at www.irs.gov/form990. nspection

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

Open Air Campaigners, U.S., Inc. 36-2420024

Pt VI, Line 11b

Pt VI, Line 19

Pt VI, Line 12c

Pt VI, Line 15a

Pt VI, Line 15b

The Board of Directors has delegated the completion and filing of the
Form 990 to the Open Air Campaigners Central Services office.

Yes, these documents are made available to the public. One way is
through the Evangelical Council for Financial Accountability (ECFA), of
which we are members in good standing, who in turn publish on their
website general and specific information and documents regarding our
mission for the general public to access. We also make these documents
available upon request from our OAC Central Services office which can be
contacted by personal visit, telephone, email or website.

This is done at both the Management Team level and also at the Board of
Directors level. OAC has a three-man Management Team consisting of a
Field Director, Personnel Developement Director and Central Services
Director. When Management Team meetings are held, regular ongoing
business procedures of the mission are monitored and reported to the
Board which would include the conflict of interest status. Then on the
Board level, these status reports are considered and any recommendations
are acted on at that time.

The process for determining compensation of the Management Team does
include a review and approval by our independent National Board of
Directors. It is based on statistical data printed by the government and
updated on a regular basis. This data is substantiated by our non-staff
Board treasurer who in turn reports to our Board of Directors and after
due deliberation a final decision is made as to the levels of
compensation officially set by Open Air Campaigners for this purpose.
The process for determining compensation of the officers and key
employees does include a review and approval by our independent National
Board of Directors. It is based on statistical data printed by the
government and updated on a reqular basis. This data is substantiated by
our non-staff Board treasurer who in turn reports to our Board of
Directors and after due deliberation a final decision is made as to the
levels of compensation officially set by Open Air Campaigners for this
purpose.

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-E2 TEEA4901 08/16/16 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)



Open Air Campaigners, U.S,, Inc. 36-2420024

Schedule O (Form 990), Supplemental Information to Form 990
Form 990, Page 2, Part lll, Line 1 (continued)

Briefly describe the organization's mission:
offices in the US. Open Air Campiagners is an evangelistic ministry of preaching the

gospel to lost people and mobilizing the Body of Christ primarily through Open Air Outreach.




